BIG LAGOON COMMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT UNAPPROVED MINUTES of the Regular Monthly Board Meeting Saturday July 30, 2022 at 10AM in the Big Lagoon Elementary School Library, including participation via Zoom

1. Chair's Call to Order (Bill)

The open/regular meeting of the Big Lagoon Community Services District convened at 10 AM. Board members in attendance: Bill Wenger, Chair; Gus Satein, Vice Chair; Chuck King, Director; Louise Minor, Director; Dick Maier, Treasurer (zoom) Staff in attendance: Val Castellano, Water Operator; Mara Friedman, Board Secretary Community members in attendance: J. Blaine, M. Adler, S. Cruson, Boone, J. Donohoe (zoom).

2. Agenda for June 18, 2022 (Bill) Comments / Amend / Approval

Louise wants to address the issue of landlord's rights as customers of BLCSD. After discussion and unanimous agreement, the Agenda was amended to add this topic as item #16 (items #16 & #17 are now #17 & #18). The agenda is approved as amended.

3. Public Comment

There were no public comments.

4. Recognize Public Correspondence received by noon on July 29th (Bill)

No public correspondence was received as of noon Friday 7/29/22.

5. June 18, 2022 Unapproved Minutes (Bill) Comments / Amend / Approval

There were no changes to the meeting minutes. Minutes are approved as distributed by Bill.

REPORTS (The public may comment <u>before</u> each report is given)

6. School Pipeline Project Update (Bill)

6.1 LACO submitted a revised SOW and Fee Estimate

The project is proceeding. LACO was asked by SWRCB to revise the statement of work and fee estimate. The new estimate of planning/design phase is now \$142K, triple the initial estimate. LACO said this estimate is high and should come in lower. We expect SWRCB will fund the project in full.

6.2 District must be audited, or submit 3 years tax returns

Per SWRCD, our district needs to be audited or must submit 3 years of Federal tax returns. The State Controller suggested to Bill that the district contact the Humboldt County Auditor Controller regarding the need for a financial review. Chuck noted that Humboldt County has a new Auditor Controller and they are better staffed and organized than previously. The Board has to unanimously pass a resolution to request a Financial Review. SWRCB will advise us if a Financial Review satisfies the requirement for an audit.

7. Vice-Chair's Report (Gus)

7.1 Meter Box Project update

Gus and Bill assembled a storage shed located behind Dick and Cindy's property which will securely store all materials for this project. September 28th is the revised target date to receive the new water meters. Instead of digital gauges, the new meters will have a LCD screen (at the same cost). Keenan Plumbing Supply hopes to receive items next week. Once all the plumbing supplies are received, John Morgan advices that we create a schedule for installation, rather than wait for all the materials to arrive. Gus has released a 'draft schedule' which gives a framework to help us imagine how to structure the project, which is scheduled to begin the week of August 8th. Initially, we will not do full excavation, but instead ease soil around the old boxes to make removal easier when the new plumbing equipment and boxes arrive. We will have safety apparatus in place to protect the excavation areas. Joey is expediting getting safety cones. We anticipate John Morgan will help with the installation of the new meters, as well as local contractors. We will be installing the new meters slowly over time, apprx. 4 meters a week. Dick noted that the initial payment to Badger has been made. He added that we must be sure to get good meter readings when we pull out the old meters. Gus arranged for Brad Dugan to do brush cutting along the access road to the well site.

8. The Treasurer's Report is moved to August 20th board meeting

9. Water Operator's Report (Val)

Our water table is stable and we are pumping apprx. 5K gallons/day with no salinity. We have ramped up the chlorine due to a leak in the main. During the repair, a section of-galvanized pipe was dug up and found to be nearly closed up with deposits. All of our galvanized pipe is 60 years old and Val expressed concerned as to how long it will last. He is also concerned about the required 2024 survey of lines from the meters to each house to determine what types of materials the lines are constructed of. Gus assured him that we can inventory all the pipes and connections when we are replacing the meters. Chuck noted that the recent leak repair bill from Hooven will inform us of the potential cost of repairing our old pipes/connections. Val said that we will need a grant to deal with the issue of replacing our pipes. In answer to a question regarding bids for the water leak repair, Val said we didn't get bids because it was an emergency situation. Bill added that competitive bids are not required when projects are under a certain cost, as this one was. Val suggested community members who regularly walk on the beach look for saturated wet areas on the face of the bluff.

10. Meter Reader's Report (Dana)

Dana was not present to provide an update. Dick noted that the next meter reading is September 1st. He added that the July meter reading was an estimate based on the prior year usage and that the July through September 1st period will be adjusted accordingly.

11. Storage Capacity & Fire Suppression Update (Bill)

11.1 Submitted Application for Project Development Technical Assistance (PDTA) to North Coast Resource Partnership

This application pertains to increasing water storage capacity. Independent experts will determine how much storage is warranted, and the type of tank given our coastal environment. Bill submitted an application for a PDTA study grant ranging from \$5K to \$15K.

11.2 Per NCRP and DWR, Big Lagoon CSD is an Economically Disadvantaged Community and a Severely Disadvantaged Community.

This is expected to open up funding opportunities.

12. Drought Emergency Conservation Measures Update (Chuck)

There was nothing new to report. The last meeting was in May and the workgroup had not scheduled the next meeting.

13. Volunteer Safety Program (VSP) update (Joey)

Ordered the safety cones, which should arrive this week.

14. Strategic Planning Retreat – When, Where, Who

Gus advanced the idea that we hold the retreat in September and that we obtain a trained facilitator to lead the retreat. Bill will look into that possibility. It was suggested the retreat be in 2 parts, with the initial session in August. It was also suggested that the retreat's primary focus be on how can we be a sustainable water district into the future. Gus stated that Steve Madrone should be presented with the reality that our current water district configuration may not be viable and we need to look at a new model of how our district is structured. We need to investigate the long-term sustainability of being an all-volunteer organization going forward, and relying on board members to undertake traditional management roles. We are an aging community and being a board member is a huge commitment. Chuck emphasised that because we are losing 2 extremely valuable board members in December, we must look at this issue immediately. He does not think we can have less than a 5 member board. If we are unable to find enough new board members, we may need to consider other options for our district.

NEW BUSINESS

15. Handling of finances after Dick leaves office (Bill & Dick)

We need to figure out how we will handle our finances after Dick leaves. This is not an easy process that we are about to undertake and it is vitally important to research this now before Dick leaves in December.

15.1 Billing software & integration with Badger Beacon SW

The RVS software billing system is used by Orick and Westhaven. This software is offered at a free 4 month trial basis. The upfront cost of RVS software is a very reasonable one-time cost of

\$1850, plus a small annual maintenance fee. There is an additional fee for software support. RVS is fully compatible with Badger Beacon and there is a \$1500 integration fee. We will need to purchase a Windows laptop to be dedicated to the district finances and billing. Dick thinks we can move forward and purchase the new laptop and RVS software.

15.2 Who maintains General Ledger?

Learning RVS requires a steep learning curve. Will someone in our community volunteer to take this responsibility on? If not, we will need to hire someone trained in working with this program. If we do hire someone part-time to operate the RVS software, the cost passed down to our customers could exceed \$50/month. Dick estimates that the cost to hire a bookkeeper is anywhere from \$400 to \$800/month (\$5K to \$10K/year). It would be much more expensive and complex to hire an employee rather than an independent contractor. If we hire an independent contractor, we need to be very careful. Mckinleyville and Westhaven won't be able to work with us. Orick may possibly be able to help us.

15.3 Move to monthly billing once new meters installed

With the new Badger Beacon software, perhaps we can bill monthly (instead of bi-monthly)? Our current billing statement does not indicate past due amount or finance fees, and this needs to be added to billing statements going forward.

16. (added) Landlord Concerns (Louise)

Louise noted that landlords are responsible for the water bill if their tenants do not pay. She feels strongly that landlords should be notified if bills are past due. We need to research landlord rights and tenants rights, as well as our requirements as a district. Chuck recommended these questions and concerns should be explored with our attorney. It was noted that typically renters pay the water bill. Bill asked Louise to email him her specific concerns and he will forward them on to our attorney. On the advice of our attorney, all potential revisions to our new water policy can be discussed and voted on at our August meeting. It was suggested that we reach out to landlords in our district, and that they also need to educate themselves as to their rights and responsibilities.

17. (was 16) Future agenda items from board members

- Dick wants to include the topic regarding landlord rights as part of our billing policy.
- Bill wants to include the topic regarding LAFCO's suggestion that we hire of a part-time general manager to support our board members. Currently our board members are taking on time consuming managerial tasks in addition to their board duties.

18. (was 17) ADJOURN

With no other business, the Chair adjourned the meeting at 11:41PM
The next regular meeting will be Saturday, August 20th at 10 AM in the Big Lagoon School Community Room and will also be accessible via Zoom
Submitted by Mara Friedman, Board Secretary